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1                       BEFORE THE

2               ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION

3

IN THE MATTER OF:            )

4                              )

AYANNA NESBITT,              )

5         Complainant,         )

                             )   No. 12-0441

6                              )

COMMONWEALTH EDISON          )

7 COMPANY,                     )

         Respondent.         )

8                              )

Complaint as to billing      )

9 and/or charges in Chicago,   )

Illinois.                    )

10

11                    Chicago, Illinois

                    December 5, 2012

12

         Met, pursuant to adjournment, at 2:11 p.m.,

13  in Conference Room N-808, 160 North LaSalle Street,

 Chicago, Illinois.

14

15  BEFORE:

16  Mr. John T. Riley, Administrative Law Judge

17

18

19

20

21

22
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1  APPEARANCES:
2      Ms. Ayanna Nesbitt,

     (545 East 50th Street, #2,
3       Chicago, Illinois 60615),

         Complainant;
4

     LAW OFFICES OF MARK L. GOLDSTEIN, P.C.,
5      (3019 Province Circle,

     Mundelein, Illinois 60060,
6      (847) 949-1340), by:

     MR. MARK L. GOLDSTEIN,
7      mlglawoffices@aol.com,
8               and
9      COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY,

     (440 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3300,
10      Chicago, Illinois 60605,

     (312) 394-3866), by:
11      MS. ERIN BUECHLER,

     erin.buechler@comed.com,
12          for the Respondent,

         Commonwealth Edison Company.
13
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1                        I N D E X

2

 WITNESS      DX    CX     RDX     RCX   By Judge

3

 Nesbitt            19                        6

4                     24                       20

 Funches      29                             43

5

6

                  E X H I B I T S

7

8  NUMBER           MARKED FOR ID     IN EVIDENCE

9  ComEd 1               31                 48

 ComEd 2               41                 48

10  Complainant's 1       46                 48

 Complainant's 2       46                 48

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22



120512ICC

27

1       JUDGE RILEY:  Pursuant to the direction of the

2  Illinois Commerce Commission, I call Docket 12-0441.

3  This is a complaint by Ayanna Nesbitt versus

4  Commonwealth Edison Company as to billing and/or

5  charges in Chicago, Illinois.

6                Ms. Nesbitt, I understand that you are

7  proceeding without counsel today; is that correct?

8       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  And is it correct that the

10  service address that you are complaining about is 545

11  East 50th Street, Apartment 2, in Chicago, Illinois?

12       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  Thank you.

14                And, Mr. Goldstein, will you enter an

15  appearance for the record, please?

16       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  For Commonwealth Edison

17  Company, Mark L. Goldstein, 3019 Province Circle,

18  Mundelein, Illinois, 60060.  My telephone number is

19  (847) 949-1340.  With me this afternoon is Erin

20  Buechler of ComEd as well as our witness, Trishaun

21  Funches.

22       JUDGE RILEY:  Thank you.
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1                And, Ms. Nesbitt, this is an

2  evidentiary hearing.  You're aware that I am -- as I

3  recall, that you would proceed with your evidence

4  today?

5       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

6       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

7                And do you have that evidence with

8  you, whatever --

9       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

10       JUDGE RILEY:  All right, then.

11                Let me, first of all, swear you in.

12

13                  (The witness was duly sworn.)

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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1                     AYANNA NESBITT,

2  called as a witness on her own behalf, having been

3  first duly sworn, was examined and testified as

4  follows:

5

6

7                       EXAMINATION

8                     BY JUDGE RILEY:

9

10       Q.   And if you would, you can start now, in

11  just a narrative style, to please describe your

12  complaint and try and frame exactly what it is that

13  you're objecting to with Commonwealth Edison?

14       A.   Well, they have an amount that they were

15  continuously tacking onto a bill that was paid out.

16       Q.   They were tacking on amounts to a bill that

17  had been paid?

18       A.   Correct.

19       Q.   Please go on.

20       A.   And interest with the amount that had been

21  paid.  Per ComEd, I automatically went back on a

22  payment plan that was initially paid out.  It
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1  generated itself back on a payment plan.  When I

2  called to find out about why each month I would pay

3  the bill out but yet there was still an amount

4  showing as if I owed, so what I would do was pay what

5  I knew -- the usage I had used except this amount

6  that I kept finding reoccurring on the bill.  When I

7  finally called to ask them, like, why is this

8  suddenly showing on my bill with interest, they told

9  me -- that's when they told me it was a payment plan.

10  And I said, why would I be on a payment plan?  I paid

11  the payment out.  That's when they told me, well, we

12  don't have a telephone call from you where you didn't

13  want to be put back on the payment plan, so the

14  computer automatically generates you to a payment

15  plan again.

16       Q.   When specifically -- the closest you can

17  come -- were you initially put on a payment plan by

18  Commonwealth Edison?

19       A.   I want to say initially April of 2011.  I

20  could be a little off, but that's the closest I can

21  remember.

22       Q.   And do you remember what the terms of that
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1  payment plan were?

2       A.   Not per se.  I know it was -- I can't think

3  of the dollar amount, but the dollar amount plus

4  whatever the current bill would be.

5       Q.   Do you remember how -- well, this may be

6  the same question, but do you recall what the

7  outstanding amount was that you owed all together?

8  What was the total amount owed?

9       A.   Oh, I don't know.  If I had to guess, maybe

10  three or four hundred dollars.  I don't know.  I'm

11  really taking a guess.

12       Q.   And did you satisfy -- to your

13  recollection, did you satisfy the terms of that

14  payment plan?

15       A.   Each month I did.  Somewhere, I guess,

16  in-between -- I want to say maybe August and

17  October -- down the line, they notified me that I had

18  missed a payment between that time.

19       Q.   All right.

20       A.   Okay?

21                And so they accepted a payment --

22  let's just say they accepted it in September.  Then
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1  when October came, they told me, well, you missed

2  August's payment, which I felt was kind of odd.  So I

3  said, okay, well -- they said, well, you're off the

4  payment plan now.  You're going to have to pay the

5  bill in its entirety.  And I said, well, is there

6  anything I can do?  And they said, no.  And about a

7  week later, I got a disconnection notice for the

8  amount that the representative had told me I would

9  need to pay in its entirety.  At that time, I did

10  that, which would have taken me to the zero balance.

11       Q.   And you're saying that you did pay the

12  entire amount --

13       A.   Yes, I did.

14       Q.   -- that was outstanding?

15       A.   Yes.

16       Q.   For the record, let me refer back to your

17  actual complaint in which you state, on October 13,

18  2011, you were put on a payment plan for $825.40.

19       A.   Okay.

20       Q.   And you're saying that you had paid down

21  part of that?

22       A.   Yes.
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1       Q.   You had missed a payment somewhere along

2  the line -- or ComEd said you had missed payment

3  somewhere along the line?

4       A.   Yes.

5       Q.   And as a result, they demanded the entire

6  balance due?

7       A.   Yes.

8       Q.   Then when you received a disconnection

9  notice in November, you state that you responded to

10  that notice with a payment of $490.  And this is what

11  supposedly, according to your records, you say put

12  your account at zero balance with no amount --

13  outstanding amount due?

14       A.   Yes, sir.

15       Q.   And that's where we are right now?

16       A.   Yes, sir.

17       Q.   That you owe the -- is ComEd still saying

18  now that you owe the $490 plus your monthly usage?

19       A.   No.  I guess from that point on, they

20  started -- that's when they told me the payment plan

21  started back up.  So I kept saying, well, what

22  payment plan because now we're at the point that I
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1  only owe what's coming in, what bill will be coming.

2  I don't owe an outstanding amount.

3       Q.   I see what you mean.

4       A.   And when that bill came in, I paid that

5  bill.  So then it kept showing -- like it showed --

6  if the bill was $60, it kept showing like $80.  And I

7  kept saying, well, what is the extra money?  So I

8  figured maybe the $493 hadn't hit.  So the next month

9  came, and it was the same thing except it showed if

10  the bill -- if I paid the $60 and it left a $30

11  amount, the next month it was -- it just kept

12  accumulating, and I'm like what's going on?

13       Q.   Why if they -- if they said that there was

14  $490 outstanding, why would they only bill you a

15  small part of that?  In other words, they bill you

16  for your regular usage every month plus some part of

17  this outstanding amount.  Is that what you're saying?

18       A.   They billed -- they billed me for

19  everything.  She told me -- I said, what was -- when

20  I paid this, she said that would bring you to your

21  current bill?  I said, well, what's outstanding?  She

22  said, nothing at the time because the new bill had
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1  not been generated.

2       Q.   Well, let me go back to your complaint

3  here.  It says that this is a notice with a payment

4  of $490.  This payment brought the account down to

5  zero balance with no outstanding amount due.  And

6  you're saying that you've been at zero balance except

7  for your monthly usage ever since then, is that

8  correct, since August --

9       A.   No.  The bill has just been coming and with

10  more and more accumulations.

11       Q.   Right.  That's what Commonwealth Edison is

12  saying.

13       A.   Yes.

14       Q.   Your contention is that you have paid down

15  to zero balance all months that were outstanding, and

16  you just owe your monthly usage each month now; is

17  that correct?

18       A.   Correct.

19       Q.   So is it correct to say that this figure of

20  $490 is the actual disputed amount?

21       A.   No.

22       Q.   Well, this is -- this is where I'm
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1  confused.  What is ComEd billing you for?  In other

2  words --

3       A.   Okay.

4       Q.   You say you paid this $490.  And yet,

5  Commonwealth Edison is saying that you owe your

6  monthly regular usage plus some additional amount.

7       A.   I don't know where -- I'm not

8  understanding -- this part here, at $490, the

9  December bill should have been whatever it was, and I

10  paid it.

11       Q.   That's your usage, right?

12       A.   At my usage.  But, however, they had tacked

13  on another amount that's supposed to be this payment

14  plan so in addition to my bill plus the payment plan.

15       Q.   I see.  So you --

16       A.   Maybe I wrote it wrong.

17       Q.   It was your understanding that you were

18  still on a payment plan?  They had to put you back on

19  a payment plan?

20       A.   That wasn't my understanding.  My

21  understanding was my new bill would come, and I was

22  done with the payment plan.
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1       Q.   And yet, you were receiving bills for your

2  usage plus additional amount?

3       A.   Correct.

4       Q.   And did ComEd tell you that that was part

5  of a payment plan?

6       A.   That was after I called them, like why

7  every month my bill comes there's more money, you're

8  asking for more money and more interest on the money

9  that you're asking for.  And that's when they told

10  me, well, we don't have a call where you didn't call

11  in and say take you off the payment plan.  And I

12  said, why would I tell you to take me off a payment

13  plan when I paid it out?

14       Q.   So to your knowledge, you had satisfied the

15  amounts on the payment plan?

16       A.   Yes, sir.

17       Q.   And that was the payment of this $490?

18       A.   Yes, sir.

19       Q.   All right.

20                So what's at issue now are these

21  additional amounts that ComEd has been billing you

22  for over and above your regular monthly usage?
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1       A.   Yes, sir.

2       Q.   Okay.

3                And do these amounts vary each month?

4       A.   It was the interest rate so, yes, because

5  now the bill -- let's say it was $30 they were

6  charging me for.  Then it was interest on that $30.

7  Now, next month it's $60, so the interest would go

8  up.

9       Q.   All right.

10       A.   So that amount would be more and more and

11  more and more.

12       Q.   I understand that because the interest

13  piles up.

14       A.   Yes.

15       Q.   But what I'm saying is that there's an

16  amount for your actual usage, so you use a certain

17  amount of electricity each month?

18       A.   Yes.

19       Q.   You're billed for that amount.  Then there

20  was an additional amount --

21       A.   Yes.

22       Q.   -- that they called the payment plan?
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1       A.   Yes.

2       Q.   And then there was interest over and above

3  that?

4       A.   Yes.

5       Q.   Right.

6                Now, do you have any documentation

7  that shows this?

8       A.   I don't have the bills.  I don't.  I just

9  have what they sent me out because I asked for a

10  printout of what I had paid, what I had used.

11       Q.   All right.

12       A.   So this is my banking statement just

13  proving the different payments I made that they

14  didn't -- they claim they didn't have.

15       Q.   That's a personal bank statement, right?

16       A.   Yes.

17       Q.   Okay.

18                I want to get back to that in just a

19  second, but I wanted to make sure I understood what

20  exactly it was that you were complaining about.

21                Is that the only documentation that

22  you have, just the personal bank statement?
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1       A.   Yes.

2       Q.   All right.

3       A.   As far as -- I didn't have any bills just

4  the cut-off notice that they had sent me once again.

5  But by then, I had paid the bill, so I didn't

6  understand what -- it was almost like everything was

7  duplicating itself.

8       Q.   Right.

9                Now, the dwelling that you live in

10  at -- excuse me -- at 545 East 50th Street --

11       A.   Yes.

12       Q.   -- is this an apartment building?

13       A.   It's a house.  It's a two-flat.  But family

14  lives on the first.  I live on the second.

15       Q.   I see.  Okay.  It's a two-flat building.

16                And you live on the second floor?

17       A.   Yes.

18       Q.   And what electrical appliances do you have

19  there?  Do you have the regular refrigerator,

20  television?

21       A.   Yes, a stove, refrigerator, television.

22       Q.   Is the stove electric or gas?
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1       A.   Gas.

2       Q.   It is gas.  Okay.

3                Lamps?  That sort of thing?

4       A.   No.  Just the regular lighting in the

5  house.

6       Q.   Right.

7                To your knowledge, is the building

8  well insulated?

9       A.   To my knowledge.

10       Q.   Okay.

11                What is your -- do you know what your

12  actual amount outstanding with Commonwealth Edison is

13  right now as of your last bill?

14       A.   It's pretty high because I haven't paid

15  anything since all of this has been going on along

16  with being ill, unable to work, so I think it's like

17  $1,300 now.  But if some of that -- some of what they

18  have on there is taken off, it should be much less

19  than that.

20       Q.   No, I understand that.

21                So is it my understanding that you

22  haven't been paying your monthly usage?
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1       A.   No.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

3                Mr. Goldstein, I don't have any

4  further questions for the -- for the witness -- for

5  the complainant right now.  Did you have anything

6  else that you wanted to add at this time?

7       THE WITNESS:  Not at this time, no.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  All right, then.

9       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have just one question.

10       JUDGE RILEY:  I may get back to you.  I'm not

11  sure.

12       THE WITNESS:  Okay.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  Mr. Goldstein, go ahead.

14       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have one question of Ms.

15  Nesbitt.

16

17

18                    CROSS EXAMINATION

19                    BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

20

21       Q.   Ms. Nesbitt, ComEd's records show that on

22  March 26, 2012, you made a $70 payment to ComEd.
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1                Have you made any payments on your

2  electric bill since that date?

3       A.   I don't want to say I haven't.  I might

4  have made one more after that, but I'm not for sure.

5       Q.   Do you have any proof of that?

6       A.   What date do you have?

7       Q.   March -- March of 2012.

8       A.   Again, I have up until April here.  I

9  didn't print any more.  So I would say I'm not for

10  sure still.

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Okay.

12                I have nothing else, Judge.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

14                Just a minute.

15

16

17                   FURTHER EXAMINATION

18                     BY JUDGE RILEY:

19

20       Q.   Ms. Nesbitt, are you -- do you own the

21  building you live in, or are you a tenant?

22       A.   I'm a tenant.
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1       Q.   You're a tenant.

2                Can you estimate -- on the bills that

3  you've been receiving with your current usage over

4  the past few months, can you estimate or recall any

5  of the additional amounts that you've been

6  required -- that Commonwealth Edison has been

7  requiring?

8       A.   I think it was like maybe forty-nine,

9  fifty-nine -- I'm not for sure -- dollars because

10  they -- what they did was went off the current bill.

11  So if the current bill came in at $70, the payment

12  plan they put me on was a percentage off of whatever

13  that current bill for December was.

14       Q.   So in other words, if they wanted 50

15  percent, they'd send you a bill for $105 if I follow

16  you?

17       A.   Yes.

18       Q.   So in other words, it would be $70 with

19  your usage, and they'd want you to pay 50 percent of

20  that as part of the payment plan?

21       A.   Yes.

22       Q.   So it would be an additional $35?
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1       A.   Yes.

2       Q.   All right.  Something like that.  Okay.

3                The bank statement that you have,

4  without going into revealing any details, what does

5  that show?  Does that show the --

6       A.   Well, it just shows the payment of the

7  $493.50 that would have taken me to zero balance.

8  When the new bill came in where I made the payment

9  of -- I don't know what the new bill was, but I made

10  a payment of $161.68, which at that time I would pay

11  my mom's bill and my bill, but they would -- you

12  know, at the agent.  And the agent would split it up,

13  so I can't tell you exactly what my payment portion

14  was.

15       Q.   I see.

16                And do you know what date that was,

17  the one sixty-one?

18       A.   It was in December.  But they have it for

19  January 1 on my statement, so I know that's not

20  right.

21       Q.   January 1 of 2012?

22       A.   Yes.
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1       Q.   Right.

2       A.   But it was for December's payment.

3       Q.   Well, that was probably when it was just

4  recorded by them.

5                And you say that you estimate that you

6  owe Commonwealth Edison -- or Commonwealth Edison

7  blames you for a total of about $1,300 right now?

8       A.   With this overage, yes.

9       Q.   Okay.

10                And on the bank statement, it shows

11  the $493 payment?

12       A.   $493.50, yes.

13       Q.   And does that have a date?

14       A.   It says November 18, which I know is

15  probably --

16       Q.   Of 2011?

17       A.   2011, yes.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

19                Again, I don't have any further

20  questions for you right now, but I may again get back

21  to you.

22                Mr. Goldstein, based upon this
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1  follow-up, do you have anything further for the

2  witness?

3

4

5                   RECROSS EXAMINATION

6                    BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

7

8       Q.   Do you have any bill with you with respect

9  to how a payment plan is shown on your electric bill?

10       A.   I do not.

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else.

12       JUDGE RILEY:  Thank you.

13                Ma'am, I'm going to consider that for

14  the time being we have concluded Ms. Nesbitt's case

15  in chief.  Is there anything else that you wanted to

16  add at this time?

17                One of the things I would like to do

18  before we -- before we get to that point, let me see

19  the documentation you have there and see if you have

20  any -- okay.  These are your bank statements, right?

21       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

22       JUDGE RILEY:  This is highly confidential.
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1       MS. NESBITT:  I'm just showing the different

2  ones.

3       JUDGE RILEY:  And the ones that you've

4  highlighted here, are you saying that these are --

5       MS. NESBITT:  Payments.

6       JUDGE RILEY:  -- payments to ComEd?

7       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

8       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, we're going to provide

9  an activity statement for Ms. Nesbitt's account,

10  which will indicate the payments that Ms. Nesbitt has

11  made on the account.

12       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

13                What I want to do is get copies of

14  these, though, and this will be treated totally and

15  completely confidential by all parties.  And is this

16  information that ComEd has --

17       MS. NESBITT:  Given me to supply.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  These are prior bills?

19       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.  Oh, here's one.  This is

20  from May.  See here?  I think this is -- this is a

21  payment plan.  It doesn't show payment plan.

22       JUDGE RILEY:  Let me see -- not these.  Let me
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1  see some of the other bills.

2       MS. NESBITT:  Oh, this is just the one that

3  shows the bill where they added an additional deposit

4  required, which I didn't understand that.  So all of

5  this brings the bill up.

6       JUDGE RILEY:  And that's the --

7       MS. NESBITT:  That's the shut-off notice.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  That's the shut-off notice?  Let

9  me see -- this is all on the record.  Let me get

10  those other bills and all of the bank statements that

11  you have payments highlighted.  Let me see those,

12  too.

13                Okay.  All right.  I'll make copies

14  and give these back.

15

16                  (After a short break, the

17                   proceedings were resumed as

18                   follows:)

19

20       JUDGE RILEY:  Let me -- the complainant has a

21  considerable number of documents here.  Let me get

22  them in some kind of date or some kind of
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1  chronological order.  The complainant has produced

2  bank statements from December 2011, January 2012,

3  March 2012, and April of 2012 and has highlighted in

4  yellow the debit amounts that purportedly show

5  payments going to Commonwealth Edison on specific

6  dates.  And the witness has also provided copies of

7  Commonwealth Edison bills for her account, one dated

8  June 6, 2012, May 7, 2012.  There is an additional

9  deposit request dated May 31, 2012.  And there is a

10  final notice prior to disconnection for complainant's

11  account dated June 7, 2012.

12                Ms. Nesbitt, were you ever actually

13  disconnected?  Was your service ever actually

14  disconnected?

15       MS. NESBITT:  No.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  Oh, all right.

17                Mr. Goldstein, I'm going make copies

18  of these.  As I stated before, the bank statements

19  will be held in the strictest confidentiality.  There

20  will be no disclosure beyond the commission of these

21  documents.  But what I want to do is -- let's go off

22  the record for a minute.
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1                  (There was a discussion off

2                   the record.)

3

4       JUDGE RILEY:  Mr. Goldstein, these are copies

5  of the documents that the witness has offered.

6       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  All right.

7       JUDGE RILEY:  Or the complainant has offered.

8       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, can I defer any further

9  cross-examination while I look at these and put on my

10  witness?

11       JUDGE RILEY:  Please, say it again?

12       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Could I defer any further

13  cross-examination of Ms. Nesbitt and put on my

14  witness first?

15       JUDGE RILEY:  Well, that implies that you may

16  have some additional cross-examination after your

17  witness.

18       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, I may, but I may not.

19       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

20                Ms. Nesbitt, do you have any objection

21  to that?

22       MS. NESBITT:  No.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

2                Then at this time, Mr. Goldstein,

3  would you care to call your next -- call your first

4  witness?

5       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  I call Trishaun Funches.

6

7                  (The witness was duly sworn.)

8

9       JUDGE RILEY:  Please proceed.

10

11

12

13                    TRISHAUN FUNCHES,

14  called as a witness herein, having been first duly

15  sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

16

17

18                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

19                    BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

20

21       Q.   Ms. Funches, state your full name and spell

22  your name for the record.
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1       A.   My full name is Trishaun, T-r-i-s-h-a-u-n,

2  last name is Funches, F-u-n-c-h-e-s.

3       Q.   And you're employed by ComEd; is that

4  correct?

5       A.   That is correct.

6       Q.   And what is your current position with

7  ComEd?

8       A.   I am currently a senior business analyst.

9       Q.   And how long have you been employed by

10  ComEd?

11       A.   I have been employed 18 years.

12       Q.   And how long have you been a senior

13  business analyst with ComEd?

14       A.   Four years.

15       Q.   And could you generally describe your

16  duties as a senior business analyst?

17       A.   In my current position, I review accounts

18  for collection activity, provide testimony.

19       Q.   And are you familiar with Ms. Nesbitt's

20  account that's the subject of this proceeding?

21       A.   Yes, I am.

22       Q.   And you've examined certain books and
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1  records of Commonwealth Edison Company, have you not,

2  in preparing yourself for this proceeding?

3       A.   Yes.

4

5                  (WHEREUPON, the document was

6                   marked ComEd Exhibit 1 for

7                   identification, as of 12/5/12.)

8

9  BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

10       Q.   Let me hand you what has been marked as

11  ComEd Exhibit No. 1, which is entitled, Business

12  Activity Statement.

13                Do you have that in front of you?

14       A.   Yes, I do have a copy in front of me.

15       Q.   And it's dated November 28, 2012, and

16  consists of two pages?

17       A.   Yes.

18       Q.   What is the current balance on Ms.

19  Nesbitt's account at 545 East 50th Street?

20       A.   As of the date of the activity statement,

21  the balance $1,437.85.

22       Q.   And this business activity statement is a
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1  business record of ComEd, is it not?

2       A.   Yes, it is.

3       Q.   And it is kept in the ordinary course of

4  ComEd's business?

5       A.   Yes, it is.

6       Q.   And generally describe what is shown on

7  this business activity statement.

8       A.   The activity statement is a record of

9  electric service charges and any other fees that are

10  billed to the account in addition to -- it will show

11  any credits or payments that have been applied to the

12  account.

13       Q.   And you've heard Ms. Nesbitt's testimony

14  this afternoon and read her formal complaint alleging

15  overcharges and being put on a payment plan without

16  notice, have you not?

17       A.   Yes.

18       Q.   Can you explain for us, in your review of

19  the account, the payment plan history of Ms.

20  Nesbitt's account?

21       A.   Yes.

22                Ms. Nesbitt was originally placed on a
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1  deferred payment agreement in February, February 15.

2       Q.   Of which year?

3       A.   I'm sorry.  2011.  That was the original

4  request for a deferred payment agreement.  At that

5  time, the balance was $637.13.  A down payment was

6  required to set up the payment agreement, and we

7  received payment of the down payment required.  And

8  the remaining balance was placed on installments, a

9  payment agreement where installments would be a bill

10  in addition to the current charges in order to assist

11  the customer in retiring the past due balance.

12                In -- let's see.  On April 4, 2011,

13  the payment agreement defaulted due to lack of

14  payment for the installment plan that was due on

15  April 1.  And then on the 13th of April, 2011 -- I

16  guess I should back up.  When the payment agreement

17  defaulted, the balance that was remaining in the

18  payment agreement was billed back to the account.

19  And that brought the customer's balance up to

20  $825.40.  And on April 13, the payment agreement was

21  reestablished for the customer, and she was required

22  to pay a security deposit of $50, and the remaining
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1  $775 was placed back on a payment agreement where it

2  would bill out in installments, again, for the

3  customer.  And at that time, the installments were

4  $84.80.  And that would be due in addition to the

5  customer's bill each month.

6       JUDGE RILEY:  Excuse me.  Does the witness have

7  a copy of this?

8       THE WITNESS:  Yes.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  Do you have a copy of the -- the

10  document that she's --

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  It's on the table, yes.

12       JUDGE RILEY:  I just want to make sure you can

13  follow along.  Yes, there it is.

14       THE WITNESS:  And I am at the 4/13/11 date.

15       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Funches, just keep your voice

16  level up.

17       THE WITNESS:  Speak up?

18       JUDGE RILEY:  Yes.

19       THE WITNESS:  Okay.  It's probably because I'm

20  looking down.

21                4/13/11 the payment agreement was

22  reestablished for the customer, and it was going to
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1  bill out the $775.40 in installments of $84.08 in

2  addition to the current bill.  The next bill was due

3  on May 31 for $203 -- I'm sorry, $202.58, which was

4  the customer's bill installment and her last -- I'm

5  sorry, a payment on a security deposit.  The customer

6  made that payment on May 18.  That's the day it

7  posted to the account.  The following bill was

8  issued, the installment, the current charges, and an

9  installment on her security deposit that was due on

10  June 30 for $226.09.  The customer made that payment.

11  She did make it in two payments, but she made it in

12  full, a payment of $111 and a payment of $115.  The

13  following bill was the bill for -- that was due

14  August 1, which was the bill plus the installment.

15  It was $259.31.  The customer made that payment.  The

16  following bill was due August 30, which was the bill

17  plus the next installment for $366.41.  The customer

18  made that payment.  The following bill on page two

19  was the bill plus the installment.  That was due

20  October 28 for $163.24.  When the payment was not

21  received by the 28th of October, the deferred payment

22  agreement automatically defaulted or canceled.  The
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1  balance in the payment agreement at that time was

2  $324.07.  That $324.07 was billed back to the

3  account, and it caused the customer to have a balance

4  of $493.44.  On October 4, the customer's next

5  regular bill for the month issued for $83.49.  That

6  in addition to the $493.44 brought the customer's

7  balance to $576.93 with a due date of -- I'm sorry --

8  November 28.  On November 18, we received a payment

9  for $490.  That was applied to the account.  Once

10  that payment applied to the account, because it

11  didn't pay the balance in full, it placed the

12  customer back on the payment agreement for the

13  remaining $86.93.  That amount was placed back on an

14  installment to bill out for the customer over

15  installments to retire that balance.

16                Keep going?

17  BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

18       Q.   Yes, please.

19       A.   The next bill was issued for the customer

20  December 7.  It had a due date of December 29.  It

21  was the bill for the month of $93.99 plus the

22  installment of $29.85.  Again, that installment
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1  amount was the balance from the previous month that

2  the customer did not pay in full.  That brought the

3  balance to $128.44 due on October -- I'm sorry --

4  December 29.  We received a payment for $78.24.  The

5  next bill issued for the current charges, plus the

6  next installment of $29.85 brought the balance due as

7  of January 31 to $201.94.  However, because we had

8  not received the payment from December 29, the

9  deferred payment agreement then -- I'm sorry.  We

10  didn't receive the payment for January 31.  The

11  deferred payment agreement canceled again -- or

12  defaulted again, I should say.  And the amount that

13  billed out from the deposit -- I'm sorry, from the

14  deferred payment agreement was $29.41.  The next bill

15  issued on February 7 for $108.44 brings her balance

16  to $342.82.

17       Q.   Okay.

18                And other -- there were no other

19  additional charges other than late fees that were

20  issued with respect to any deferred payment

21  arrangements subsequent to the February dates that

22  you've just described; is that right?
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1       A.   That is correct.  There were late charges.

2       Q.   And you do show a payment made by Ms.

3  Nesbitt on March 26 of 2012 as well as a payment --

4  another payment on --

5       A.   March 8.

6       Q.   -- March 8 and March 26 --

7       A.   Correct.

8       Q.   -- respectively of $70.

9                Are there any other payments shown on

10  her account since that date?

11       A.   No.

12       Q.   All right.

13                Now, can you describe generally

14  ComEd's policy on payment plans as it relates to Ms.

15  Nesbitt's residential electric account?

16       A.   For residential customers, if the customer

17  has a debt on the account that they are unable to pay

18  in full, the customer is eligible to go on a deferred

19  payment agreement or installment payments to help

20  retire that past due balance.  And when they do that,

21  they would pay their current bill in addition to the

22  installment each month by the due date in order to
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1  remain on that plan.

2       Q.   And generally speaking, ComEd follows the

3  deferred payment arrangement agreement section of the

4  commission's rules, and that's 83 Illinois

5  Administrative Code Section 280.110(a); is that

6  correct?

7       A.   That is correct.  Following the code.

8       Q.   And, now, you also mentioned, during the

9  course of your testimony this afternoon, that there

10  were several payment arrangements and several

11  defaults?

12       A.   Correct.

13       Q.   Would ComEd ever renegotiate or reinstate a

14  defaulted payment plan?

15       A.   Yes.  If the customer is eligible, we would

16  do both.  Not at the same time, but if the customer

17  is eligible to reinstate or renegotiate a deferred

18  payment agreement.

19       Q.   And the company itself would follow, again,

20  83 Illinois Administrative Code Section 110.  And

21  that's in sections (f) and (g) of that particular

22  section of the commission's rules; is that right?
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1       A.   That is correct.

2       Q.   Now, but for this complaint, would Ms.

3  Nesbitt's account at this time be eligible for

4  disconnection?

5       A.   Yes.  That is correct.

6       Q.   And what would be the reason for that?

7       A.   It would be eligible due to the past due

8  balance on the account.

9       Q.   And during the time period of 2011 and

10  2012 -- when you describe the various payment plans

11  and defaults on Ms. Nesbitt's account -- but for the

12  issuance of a payment plan, would the customer's

13  account have been eligible for disconnection?

14       A.   Yes.  The account would have been eligible

15  for disconnection.

16       Q.   And for the same reason that you just

17  stated?

18       A.   Yes.  Due to the past due balance on the

19  account, yes.

20       Q.   Based upon your billing experience and

21  knowledge of ComEd's obligations under Section 280 of

22  the commissions rules and various applicable tariffs,
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1  was there any error in the billing of this account or

2  in the application of any payment plans?

3       A.   No.  After the review of the activity

4  statement and the meter readings, there were no

5  errors in the billing.

6

7                  (WHEREUPON, the document was

8                   marked ComEd Exhibit 2 for

9                   identification, as of 12/5/12.)

10

11  BY MR. GOLDSTEIN:

12       Q.   Okay.

13                And with respect to the meter

14  readings, let me show you what's been marked as ComEd

15  Exhibit No. 2.

16                Do you have that in front of you?

17       A.   Yes.

18       Q.   And this is a meter reading history for Ms.

19  Nesbitt's account, meter; is that correct?

20       A.   That is correct.

21       Q.   And it covers the period from July, 2010,

22  through November 3, 2012?
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1       A.   That is correct.

2       Q.   And in that time period, am I correct that

3  all of the readings of Ms. Nesbitt's meter were

4  regular readings except for two?

5       A.   That is correct.

6       Q.   And am I also correct that those readings

7  were progressive in nature?

8       A.   Yes, all of the readings have been

9  progressive.

10       Q.   And based upon your review of the account,

11  do you see any errors, discrepancies with the meter

12  reading history of the account?

13       A.   No, no irregularities show in the meter

14  reading history.

15       Q.   Do you have anything else you want to add

16  to your testimony?

17       A.   No.

18       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have nothing else of the

19  witness.  I would move into evidence ComEd Exhibits 1

20  and 2.

21       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.  Thank you.

22                Before we get to that and before I get
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1  to Ms. Nesbitt's cross examination, I just want to

2  clear up a couple of things.

3

4

5                       EXAMINATION

6                     BY JUDGE RILEY:

7

8       Q.   Going back to Exhibit 1, what was the total

9  amount due?  I'm not sure I heard it correctly.

10       A.   Currently?

11       Q.   Right.

12       A.   As of November 28, $1,437.85.

13       Q.   Thank you.

14                And looking at the -- on the left

15  side, under the charge type, the column that says

16  charge type, what if any difference is there between

17  a payment plan and a deferred payment plan?

18       A.   Can you direct me to where you see payment

19  plan or payment agreement?

20       Q.   If you look on -- I'm sorry, not payment

21  plan.  It's payment agreement.

22       A.   That is actually the same -- the payment
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1  agreement is the payment agreement overall.  The

2  deferred payment agreement is, I guess, the technical

3  term we use, but it's interchangeable.

4       Q.   Okay.  It's essentially the same thing.

5       A.   Yes.

6       Q.   They mean the same thing.

7                And the only other question I had was

8  on Exhibit 2.  When you say the readings were

9  progressive, what do you mean by "progressive"?

10       A.   Each month, when we go out to read the

11  meter, the reading on the dial is progressive.  It's

12  almost like the same concept as the mileage on your

13  car.  If you write down the mileage on your car today

14  and if you drive it tomorrow, you write it down, you

15  see a progressive number.

16       Q.   All right.

17       A.   So that's pretty much how we --

18       Q.   So it's a continuing number?

19       A.   Yes.

20       Q.   The numbers keep rolling over and moving?

21       A.   It's showing the usage, yes.

22       Q.   Right.



120512ICC

68

1       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Nesbitt, do you have any

2  questions for Ms. Funches based upon what she has

3  testified to?

4       MS. NESBITT:  Not at this time.

5       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

6                You've got a motion to admit your two

7  exhibits; is that correct?

8       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, I do, Judge.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Nesbitt, going back to you

10  and the bank statements that you have submitted and

11  the ComEd bills that you have submitted --

12       MS. NESBITT:  Ah-huh.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  -- did you want to introduce

14  these as exhibits into evidence?

15       MS. NESBITT:  Not my bank statements.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  Well, you'll get the bank

17  statements back.  And none of the information will be

18  disclosed.  It will be held in total -- total

19  confidentiality.  But it does contain material

20  information.

21       MS. NESBITT:  Okay.

22       JUDGE RILEY:  I'm going mark the bank
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1  statements as Applicant's -- or as Complainant's

2  Group Exhibit 1.  And I am going to mark the ComEd

3  bills, as I have previously identified them, as

4  Complainant's Group Exhibit 2.

5

6                  (WHEREUPON, the documents were

7                   marked Complainant's Group

8                   Exhibits 1 and 2 for

9                   identification, as of 12/5/12.)

10

11       JUDGE RILEY:  And, Ms. Nesbitt, can I safely

12  state that you are moving for the admission of

13  Complainant's Group Exhibit 1 and Complainant's Group

14  Exhibit 2 into evidence?

15       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  And, Mr. Goldstein, what response

17  do you have?

18       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I have no technical objection

19  to Complainant's Exhibit No. 1.  I would point out

20  that as Ms. Nesbitt testified, in some of the

21  instances, with the highlighted amounts paid, some of

22  them were for her mother's account and some were for
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1  hers, and so they may not match up specifically with

2  what is shown on ComEd Exhibit No. 1.  Other than

3  that, I have no objection to Complainant's Exhibit 1.

4       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

5       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  With respect to Complainant's

6  Exhibit 2, obviously, those are ComEd bills and the

7  disconnection notice.  I have no real objection to

8  Complainant's Group Exhibit 2 other than to note that

9  none of the bills that were presented show anything

10  about a deferred payment arrangement or a payment

11  plan.

12       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

13                Well, the bills will speak for

14  themselves.  They are within the -- they are within

15  the period of time in dispute so --

16       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I'm just pointing out the

17  obvious.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  I understand.

19                With the admission of Complainant's

20  Group Exhibits 1 and 2, they are admitted into

21  evidence.

22
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1                  (WHEREUPON, the documents marked

2                   Complainant's Group Exhibits

3                   1 and 2 for identification were

4                   admitted into evidence.)

5

6       JUDGE RILEY:  That completes the complainant's

7  case in chief.

8                Mr. Goldstein, your motion for the

9  admission of your exhibits is still pending.  Ms.

10  Nesbitt, did you have any objection to the admission

11  of either of these exhibits into evidence?

12       MS. NESBITT:  No.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  Then Complainant's -- or

14  Respondent's Exhibit 1 and Respondent's Exhibit 2 are

15  admitted into evidence.

16       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you, Judge.

17

18                  (WHEREUPON, the documents marked

19                   Respondent's Exhibits 1 and 2 for

20                   identification were admitted into

21                   evidence.)

22
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  And, Ms. Nesbitt, did you have

2  anything further that you wanted to offer in support

3  of your case?

4       MS. NESBITT:  Well, going back from December up

5  until currently, that amount that I was disputing has

6  still -- when they bill me, it's still accruing

7  interest on that amount as well if it had not been

8  included in that amount.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  Right.

10       MS. NESBITT:  When did I call to get on a

11  payment plan for my bill, that's when I found out,

12  no, you have breached your payment plan that, again,

13  I had no knowledge that I was on.  So they were

14  expecting me -- and that's why there's the

15  discrepancy between the bill.  You'll see I picked

16  out an amount to pay.  And then I did not include

17  another amount from December, January, February,

18  March.  I didn't bring current bills from March up

19  until now.  But April, I believe, was the last

20  payment.  You'll see I just picked the number that I

21  thought I owed and just ignored the other amount that

22  they were requesting.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  Thank you.

2       MS. NESBITT:  As well as when I called to get

3  on a payment plan for the lower amount that I -- that

4  I owe, they would not put me on a payment plan, and I

5  was advised that the best thing to do was to get a

6  doctor's statement due to my health problems -- you

7  know, since I had health problems.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  Right.

9       MS. NESBITT:  So I had never heard of that.

10  But this is what the young lady told me.  Well, you

11  say you have health issues, why you're not able to

12  work, so get a -- you know, your doctor should be

13  able to confirm that.  And that's why the bill -- the

14  lights have not currently went off.

15       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

16                The only other question that I have

17  for you is:  You did make a remark that -- or you did

18  testify that the amounts shown on your bank

19  statements included payments for your mother's --

20       MS. NESBITT:  There was only two.  Just two.  I

21  think that was the one for --

22       JUDGE RILEY:  Well, let me sort this out now.
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1                Was your mother living with you?

2       MS. NESBITT:  No.

3       JUDGE RILEY:  She had a separate --

4       MS. NESBITT:  She's blind, so I pay her bills.

5  And the place that I pay, I pay by check.  And she

6  told me to write one check, but they give you a slip

7  that breaks it up.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  I see.

9                So they're able to take a single check

10  and apportion part of it to one account and part of

11  it to another account as long as you have that slip?

12       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  I see.  Okay.

14                And you don't know right offhand,

15  looking at the --

16       MS. NESBITT:  I think the majority would be

17  hers.  I don't think either one of my payments was

18  over a hundred dollars for those two payments that I

19  made.

20       JUDGE RILEY:  But of the -- of the five bank

21  statements that you have here --

22       MS. NESBITT:  It was the 2012 payments, though,
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1  not -- it wasn't 2011.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  I'm sorry.  I didn't follow that.

3       MS. NESBITT:  It was the 2012 payments.  I

4  think one was for -- you didn't give me -- you didn't

5  give me a copy back but --

6       JUDGE RILEY:  Let me go off the record here and

7  let me get you your -- let me get these copies back

8  to you.  I'll be right back.

9

10                  (After a short break, the

11                   proceedings were resumed as

12                   follows:)

13

14       JUDGE RILEY:  Let's go back on the record.

15                Ms. Nesbitt, the question that I was

16  asking is:  Of the amounts shown on the bank

17  statements, you stated part of -- part of the

18  payments went to your mother's account and part went

19  to yours?

20       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

21       JUDGE RILEY:  And your mother's account was

22  totally separate and a different -- a different
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1  address from yours?

2       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

3       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

4                Is there any one -- or any particular

5  statement or statements where you can identify what

6  amount went to your account and what amount went to

7  your mother's account?

8       MS. NESBITT:  The January.  I would say $100.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

10                January what?

11       MS. NESBITT:  January 5 of 2012.

12       JUDGE RILEY:  That's the amount -- the total

13  amount is $161.68?

14       MS. NESBITT:  Right.  I would use --

15  approximately a hundred dollars went to my bill, and

16  the remainder went to my mom's.  February, I think

17  that amount went to my bill.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  Hold on.  February --

19       MS. NESBITT:  17th.

20       JUDGE RILEY:  And the amount paid was $68.75?

21       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  There's no payment shown on our

22  activity statement for that amount, Judge.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  I understand that, Mr. Goldstein.

2  This is something I'm going to have to -- have to

3  reconcile when I go through the documents.

4       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I don't know how you're going

5  to be able to do that, Judge --

6       JUDGE RILEY:  Well --

7       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  -- unless you have separate

8  payments for the other account and this account.

9       JUDGE RILEY:  Are you contesting the validity

10  of the account -- of the bank statements?

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, then, I'm going to object

12  to the exhibit, Judge, on that basis.  And I would

13  also note that when Ms. Nesbitt says that there was

14  approximately a hundred dollars paid on her account,

15  ComEd shows a payment of $78.24 in January of 2012.

16  On that basis, I have to object to the testimony --

17  the exhibit in its entirety.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  Well, it was my mistake to use

19  the word "reconciliation."  Obviously, you know, the

20  documents are --

21       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  There's no way to reconcile it,

22  Judge.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  I understand that.  I just said

2  I'm going to withdraw the word "reconciliation."

3                Ms. Nesbitt, let me go back and get

4  some foundation from you.  Where did you obtain these

5  bank statements?

6       MS. NESBITT:  From off the Internet of my

7  banking account.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  And it's a -- that's a bank

9  website?

10       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

11       JUDGE RILEY:  And you printed these out from

12  that website?

13       MS. NESBITT:  Yes, I did.

14       JUDGE RILEY:  And you can testify that the

15  account number shown on the bank statement is your

16  account number?

17       MS. NESBITT:  It is.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  And let the record reflect that

19  the statement does state the complainant's name and

20  address.  However, there is -- there's no bank name.

21       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Judge, if Ms. Nesbitt would

22  like to substitute the bank name with regular bank
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1  statements other than this printout, I still would

2  have the objection that there's no way to

3  differentiate what payments were made on her mother's

4  account as opposed to what payments were made on her

5  own account to ComEd.  This is, you know, just an

6  impossibility.  ComEd has provided a business record,

7  the account activity statement, which shows payments

8  made on the account.  No payment was made for the

9  February payment that she says she made.  It does not

10  show on the activity statement.  There was a payment

11  made in March of 2012.  We would acknowledge that,

12  certainly.  So I don't know how you're going to

13  attribute any evidentiary value to the bank

14  statements.

15       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Nesbitt, would you be able to

16  go back to your bank and get actual bank statements

17  from them?

18       MS. NESBITT:  They would give me something of

19  this sort.  But I would be able to find a copy of the

20  check because they don't keep the check at the

21  agent's.  They give you the check back.  But the two

22  account numbers would be there to differentiate.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  So you would be able to get the

2  canceled checks --

3       MS. NESBITT:  I should have them.

4       JUDGE RILEY:  -- for these payments?  That

5  would be --

6       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I'm not disputing that payments

7  were made, Judge.  Well, I am disputing the February

8  payment that Ms. Nesbitt said she made.  I'm not

9  disputing the payments made in January or March.  I

10  don't know how -- if there's a check issued for X

11  amount and it's divided between two accounts, unless

12  Ms. Nesbitt can show how it's divided, that might

13  be -- that might be helpful.  I'd have to see that

14  first before I would make any statement with respect

15  to whether it's acceptable or it has any evidentiary

16  value or should be made part of the record and

17  whether I have an objection.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Nesbitt, would the checks

19  show the breakdown as to which sum of money went to

20  which account?

21       MS. NESBITT:  No, it wouldn't.  It's a flat

22  amount, and they just have you -- they have a form
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1  that ComEd recognizes.  You put the account number

2  there, and they code it in and give you a receipt,

3  two separate receipts.  But it's one check for a

4  hundred.  So if my bill is $50 and my mom's bill is

5  $50, I write one check for $100.  But the little

6  receipts that they give you separates when they go

7  back to code it in to ComEd.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  So they know which account to put

9  what sum of money to?

10       MS. NESBITT:  Exactly.

11       JUDGE RILEY:  Right.

12       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  If Ms. Nesbitt has information

13  along those lines and she provides that as a late

14  filed exhibit, then I would review it and then I'd

15  make a comment as to whether I object or not.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

17                The first order of business would be

18  for you to get ahold of those canceled checks.

19       MS. NESBITT:  But the checks wouldn't say.  The

20  checks wouldn't say.  It's the receipts that --

21       JUDGE RILEY:  No, I understand that, but that's

22  just the starting point.  I said, the first order of
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1  business is to get ahold of those checks for these

2  sums of money that are shown on these bank

3  statements.  Mr. Goldstein has raised a belated but a

4  valid objection.

5       MS. NESBITT:  Your Honor, can I ask --

6       JUDGE RILEY:  Certainly.

7       MS. NESBITT:  He said he's not disputing the

8  amounts or the payments.  Then what's being disputed

9  because I'm not disputing that they didn't receive

10  money.  I'm not disputing that I didn't pay money.

11  I'm disputing the charges that they billed me after I

12  made the $490 payment, from that point on.

13       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  All right.  That's fine.

14                Judge, let me just make one closing

15  type of argument.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  Could you speak up, please?

17       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  I hope I've been speaking

18  loud enough.

19                Ms. Funches, the ComEd witness, has

20  adequately described how the running balance of Ms.

21  Nesbitt's account was handled with the various

22  payment arrangements that were made with respect to
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1  the account.  The bottom line is that there's always

2  been a balance on the account.  The $490 payment did

3  not zero out the account.  And so everything that

4  occurred after that, obviously she did not make any

5  payments after March of 2012.  So at best, we're

6  arguing about very, very little.

7       JUDGE RILEY:  Let me -- let me check something

8  here.

9                All right.  To recap, then, Mr.

10  Goldstein, you are objecting to Complainant's Exhibit

11  1?

12       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, on the basis that I've

13  already stated.

14       JUDGE RILEY:  Insofar as that the dates and the

15  amounts do not match the dates and the amounts that

16  are on ComEd Exhibit 1?

17       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Insofar as they may not and

18  particularly as to the amounts.

19       JUDGE RILEY:  You know, it occurred to me that

20  the -- that the amounts won't match because Ms.

21  Nesbitt has testified that the amount was made for

22  two different accounts.
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1       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Correct.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  And only part of the payment

3  reflected on her Exhibit 1 is going to show up on

4  ComEd's Exhibit 1, but we don't know what that sum

5  is.

6       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Exactly.  And that's why the

7  exhibit is flawed and should not be admitted.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  Would Ms. Nesbitt be able to

9  obtain those slips that show the breakdown?  Would

10  she be able to obtain those from Commonwealth Edison?

11  In other words, it was a Commonwealth Edison form you

12  testified to; is that correct?

13       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

14       MS. FUNCHES:  No, those slips, the receipt

15  slips she's referring to, come from the authorized

16  agent.  We don't keep copies of those or provide

17  them.

18       JUDGE RILEY:  Do you know who is the authorized

19  agent?

20       MS. NESBITT:  I do.

21       JUDGE RILEY:  Would you be able to get, do you

22  think --
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1       MS. NESBITT:  I can ask them.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  Ask them if they have copies of

3  those.

4       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

5       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

6                But once they're submitted to ComEd,

7  ComEd does not keep those copies?

8       MS. FUNCHES:  They're not submitted to us at

9  all.

10       JUDGE RILEY:  Oh, they're not.  The agent makes

11  the payment, then?

12       MS. FUNCHES:  Yes, electronically.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  Who is the agent?

14       MS. NESBITT:  It's the currency exchange.

15       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

16                I'm not hopeful, but you can ask.  But

17  under any circumstances, could you again try and get

18  ahold of the -- not only the slips, but those checks

19  from your bank?

20       MS. NESBITT:  I'll try.

21       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Perhaps, what we should do,

22  your Honor, is defer ruling on Complainant's Exhibit
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1  1 until we see exactly what we're dealing with.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  That's precisely what I intend to

3  do right now.

4       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  And as Ms. Funches has said,

5  the payments that are made through the currency

6  exchange are made electronically to ComEd, and you

7  have to keep that in mind also.

8       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

9                See if there's some kind of an

10  electronic record that the currency exchange might

11  have.  Just ask them.

12       MS. NESBITT:  Okay.

13       JUDGE RILEY:  And see if you can get some

14  satisfaction there.

15       MS. NESBITT:  Okay.

16       JUDGE RILEY:  And, yes, I will hold the ruling

17  in abeyance on Complainant's Group Exhibit 1.

18                Again, was there any objection to

19  Complainant's Group Exhibit 2?

20       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No.

21       JUDGE RILEY:  That was admitted into evidence.

22       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Other than what I pointed out,
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1  I have no objection.

2       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

3                And just to make sure that we've done

4  all of the housekeeping, then, you've moved for

5  admission of ComEd Exhibit 1 and 2 into evidence?

6       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Correct, Judge.

7       JUDGE RILEY:  And just to make sure that we

8  have all of our bases covered, ComEd's Exhibits 1 and

9  2 are admitted into evidence.

10       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Very good.

11       JUDGE RILEY:  Then I'm going to continue this

12  matter generally to find out what other evidence the

13  complainant can come up with with regard to those

14  transmission slips and with regard to the checks and

15  see if she can't find something to augment or

16  supplement ComEd's Group Exhibit 1.

17       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Could she have like 28 days to

18  do so so that we can have some tracking of this,

19  Judge?

20       JUDGE RILEY:  Ms. Nesbitt, do you have any

21  idea -- I know that the holidays are coming up, and

22  it might be difficult to get over there, but do you
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1  think you can get this done sometime by the middle of

2  January, possibly?

3       MS. NESBITT:  I'll put forth good effort.

4       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

5       MS. NESBITT:  I'll put forth -- I'll start

6  today because as of Monday I'll be on -- I'll be

7  incapacitated.  I won't be able to do anything.  I

8  need to do it, at least, in-between today and Friday.

9  If not, it would have to be after six weeks.

10       JUDGE RILEY:  Oh, I see.  So --

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's fine, Judge, as long as

12  we have some outside date.

13       MS. NESBITT:  I'll start, like I said, today.

14  I'll stop by there and see.  I don't know how much

15  time they would need to -- but I will ask them if

16  they could, you know, do it within that time.

17       JUDGE RILEY:  All right.

18                Then the -- well, why don't I just

19  continue to this to a date specific -- say, January

20  16 -- but you say you're going to be incapacitated

21  after next Monday?

22       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  And that would be for

2  approximately six weeks?

3       MS. NESBITT:  Correct.

4       JUDGE RILEY:  Would you be available by

5  telephone at that time?

6       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

7       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.

8                Then we can contact --

9       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Very good, Judge.

10       JUDGE RILEY:  Pardon?

11       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  What time on the 16th?

12       JUDGE RILEY:  Make it 10:00 -- make it 11:00

13  a.m.  Then we'll leave it at that.

14       MS. NESBITT:  You don't send the form out as

15  well or no?

16       JUDGE RILEY:  I'm sorry?

17       MS. NESBITT:  You don't send the form out as

18  well, do you?  A notice?

19       JUDGE RILEY:  Oh, yes, I will.  I'll send

20  another notice out that we're going reconvene on the

21  16th of January, but we can do that by telephone.

22       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.
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1       JUDGE RILEY:  And we can still contact you at

2  the same number we've been calling you?

3       MS. NESBITT:  Yes.

4       JUDGE RILEY:  Okay.  That's fine.

5       MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you, Judge.

6       JUDGE RILEY:  Then we'll continue it to January

7  16 at 11:00 a.m., and we'll see where we are with the

8  evidence at that point.  Thank you very much.

9

10                  (WHEREUPON, the proceedings have

11                   been adjourned until January 16,

12                   2013, at the hour of 11:00 a.m.)
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